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26 September 2016 
 
 
 
INFORMATION REQUEST REFERENCE 16105 
 
 
Dear  
 
Thank you for your information request, received on 26 August 2016. You asked the London 
Legacy Development Corporation (Legacy Corporation) to provide the following information 
under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOIA):   
 

“With reference to the Concession Agreement between E20 LLP and West Ham 
United, please provide me with details of the main revenue and costs to E20 derived 
from each of West Ham’s games at the Olympic/London Stadium during August 
2016. 
 
For the avoidance of doubt the figures I wish to obtain are 
 
- revenue paid to E20 from Vinci for each of the games 
- variable overhead costs incurred by E20 for each of the games 
- in particular, police costs charged to E20 in line with the Concession 
Agreement for each of the games 
 
And my goal in asking for this information is to establish whether E20 (and therefore 
the taxpayer) has started to receive net revenue from these games.  Therefore any 
other information which you have available, which will help me reach this goal, will be 
gratefully received. 
 
The games concerned are: 
 
West Ham vs NK Domzale, 4. August 
West Ham vs Bournemouth , 21 August 
West Ham vs  Astra Giurgiu 25 August 
 
Please also confirm that all three of these games qualify as inclusions in the Match 
Quota of 25 matches per season, as defined in the Concession Agreement. 
 
Should you decide to assert that this information cannot be made available for 
reasons of “commercial confidentiality” then please explain your decision in the 
context of the Information Tribunal ruling which required you to release the 
Concession Agreement.” 

Level 10 
1 Stratford Place  
Montfichet Road 
London 
E20 1EJ 
 



 
The Legacy Corporation response is below, following your order: 
 

- revenue paid to E20 from Vinci for each of the games 
 
E20 Stadium LLP (E20) does not receive revenue from its operator LS185 (a subsidiary of 
VINCI) on a match by match basis. As such, E20 has not received any revenue from these 
matches to date. 
 

- variable overhead costs incurred by E20 for each of the games 
 
E20 does not fund the variable overhead costs on a match by match basis. These are met 
by LS185, and factored into the net revenues ultimately paid to E20. As such, E20 has not 
incurred any variable overhead costs from these matches to date.  
 

- in particular, police costs charged to E20 in line with the Concession Agreement for each 
of the games 

 
E20 does not fund police costs on a match by match basis. Where necessary, these are met 
by LS185, and factored in to the net commercial revenues ultimately paid to E20. As such, 
E20 has not incurred any police costs from these matches to date. 
 

Please also confirm that all three of these games qualify as inclusions in the Match Quota 
of 25 matches per season, as defined in the Concession Agreement. 

 
E20 confirm that the three games listed qualify as inclusions in the Match Quota of 25 
matches per season, as defined in the Concession Agreement. 
 
 
If you are unhappy with our response to your request and wish to make a complaint or 
request a review of our decision, you should write to: 
 
Deputy Chief Executive 
London Legacy Development Corporation 
Level 10 
1 Stratford Place  
Montfichet Road 
London 
E20 1EJ 
 
Please note: complaints and requests for internal review received more than two months 
after the initial response will not be handled. 
 
If you are not content with the outcome of the internal review, you may appeal directly to the 
Information Commissioner at the address given below. You should do this within two months 
of our final decision. There is no charge for making an appeal. 
 
Further information on the Freedom of Information Act 2000 is available from the Information 
Commissioner’s Office: 
 
Wycliffe House 
Water Lane 
Wilmslow 
SK9 5AF 

 



Telephone 08456 30 60 60 or 01625 54 57 45 
 

Website www.ico.gov.uk 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 

 
FOI / EIR Co-ordinator 
London Legacy Development Corporation 
 

http://www.ico.gov.uk/



